

Amendment No. 457

Senate Amendment to Senate Bill No. 248 (BDR 38-982)

Proposed by: Senate Committee on Health and Human Services**Amends:** Summary: Yes Title: Yes Preamble: No Joint Sponsorship: No Digest: Yes

ASSEMBLY ACTION			Initial and Date	SENATE ACTION			Initial and Date
Adopted	<input type="checkbox"/>	Lost	<input type="checkbox"/> _____	Adopted	<input type="checkbox"/>	Lost	<input type="checkbox"/> _____
Concurred In	<input type="checkbox"/>	Not	<input type="checkbox"/> _____	Concurred In	<input type="checkbox"/>	Not	<input type="checkbox"/> _____
Receded	<input type="checkbox"/>	Not	<input type="checkbox"/> _____	Receded	<input type="checkbox"/>	Not	<input type="checkbox"/> _____

EXPLANATION: Matter in (1) *blue bold italics* is new language in the original bill; (2) variations of green bold underlining is language proposed to be added in this amendment; (3) ~~red strikethrough~~ is deleted language in the original bill; (4) ~~purple double strikethrough~~ is language proposed to be deleted in this amendment; (5) orange double underlining is deleted language in the original bill proposed to be retained in this amendment.

DHR/MSM



Date: 4/16/2015

S.B. No. 248—Revises provisions relating to certain persons with disabilities.
(BDR 38-982)



SENATE BILL NO. 248—COMMITTEE ON
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

MARCH 11, 2015

Referred to Committee on Health and Human Services

SUMMARY—Revises provisions relating to the provision of assistance to certain voters. ~~(persons with disabilities.)~~ (BDR ~~(28-982))~~ 24-982)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: Increases or Newly Provides for Term of Imprisonment in County or City Jail or Detention Facility.

Effect on the State: Yes.

~

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets ~~[omitted material]~~ is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to ~~[persons with disabilities; requiring the Department of Motor Vehicles to place a designation on the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of a person with a disability that, in the case of a driver's license or instruction permit, indicates the person has a disability or, in the case of an identification card, indicates the person is blind or has a disability, if the person requests the designation and provides specified documentation; additionally requiring the Department to place a designation on the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of a person with a disability indicating that the person is disabled in a manner that renders the person unable to use a voting device without assistance, if the person requests the designation and provides specified documentation; providing that such a designation constitutes conclusive evidence of the condition of the holder; prohibiting a person who is not the rightful holder of such a designation from using such a designation to demonstrate that he or she is blind or has a disability; prohibiting an election board, or any member or officer of an election board, from requiring any additional documentation that a person with such a designation is entitled to assistance in casting a ballot; providing a penalty;]~~ elections; revising provisions regarding the provision of assistance in casting a ballot to a person with a disability or a person with an inability to read or write English; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

1 Under existing law, the Department of Motor Vehicles places designations on drivers' licenses, instruction permits and identification cards indicating that the holder is: (1) a veteran
2

(NRS 483.2025, 483.853); (2) a person with a disability which limits or impairs the ability to walk (NRS 483.349, 483.865); or (3) a person with a medical condition. (NRS 483.3485, 483.863)

Sections 12, 22, 29 and 45 of this bill require the Department to place a designation on: (1) the driver's license or instruction permit of a qualified person indicating that the person is a person with a disability; (2) the identification card of a qualified person indicating that the person is blind or is a person with a disability; and (3) the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of a qualified person indicating that the person is blind or is a person with a disability and is unable to use a voting device without assistance. Section 2 of this bill provides that such a designation constitutes conclusive proof that the holder is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, as applicable, and prohibits an officer of this State, an agency of this State or a political subdivision of this State from requiring such a person to provide any additional proof of that condition. Existing law provides that, with limited exceptions, a person with a physical disability or an inability to read or write English is entitled to assistance in casting a ballot if the need for assistance is apparent or known to the election board, but the election board may require such a person to sign a statement under penalty of perjury swearing that he or she requires such assistance. (NRS 293.296, 293C.282) Sections 7 and 9 of this bill prohibit an election board, or any member or officer thereof, from requiring a person who holds a designation that the person is disabled in a manner that renders him or her unable to use a voting device without assistance to produce any additional documentation of his or her disability to be entitled to assistance in casting a ballot. Section 6 of this bill prohibits a person from using a designation that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability to prove or otherwise demonstrate that he or she is a person who is blind or has a disability if the person, in fact, is not blind or does not have a disability. I establish that: (1) a person with a disability or an inability to read or write English remains entitled to assistance in casting a ballot if the need for such assistance is apparent or known to the election board; (2) a person with a disability or an inability to read or write English may request assistance in voting in any manner; and (3) an election board may not require a person with a disability or an inability to read or write English to sign a statement under penalty of perjury swearing that he or she requires assistance in casting a ballot. Under existing law, a person with a disability that prevents him or her from marking or signing a ballot, or using a voting device without assistance, is required, as a prerequisite to receiving an absent ballot, to furnish a statement from a licensed physician certifying that the person is a person with a disability. (NRS 293.3165, 293C.318) Sections 8 and 10 of this bill eliminate the requirement that a person with a disability furnish a statement from a physician certifying that the person is a person with a physical disability as a prerequisite to the person receiving an absent ballot.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. ~~Chapter 426 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this act.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 2. ~~1. A valid designation that a person is:~~
~~(a) A person with a disability on a driver's license or instruction permit pursuant to section 16 of this act constitutes conclusive evidence that the person identified on the license or permit, as applicable, is a person with a disability.~~
~~(b) Blind or a person with a disability on an identification card pursuant to section 22 of this act constitutes conclusive evidence that the person identified on the card is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, as applicable.~~
~~2. An officer or employee of this State, an agency of this State or a political subdivision of this State shall not require a person who holds a valid driver's license, instruction permit or identification card with a designation as described in subsection 1 to produce any additional documentation or evidence to~~

~~demonstrate that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, as applicable.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

~~Sec. 3. [The Department may adopt regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of NRS 426.401 to 426.461, inclusive, and sections 2 and 3 of this act.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

~~Sec. 4. [NRS 426.401 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~426.401 As used in NRS 426.401 to 426.461, inclusive, and sections 2 and 3 of this act, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 426.411, 426.421 and 426.431 have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

~~Sec. 5. [NRS 426.441 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~426.441 1. A person with a permanent disability may apply to the Department for an expedited service permit. The application must:~~

~~(a) Be submitted on a form approved by the Department; and
(b) Include a statement from a licensed physician certifying that the applicant is a person with a permanent disability.~~

~~2. Upon receipt of a completed application pursuant to subsection 1 and the payment of any required fee, the Department shall issue a permit to the applicant. The permit must:~~

~~(a) Set forth the name and address of the person to whom it is issued;
(b) Include a colored photograph of the applicant and the international symbol of access which must be white on a blue background;
(c) Include any other information the Department may require; and
(d) Be the same size as a driver's license issued by the Department pursuant to the provisions of chapter 482 of NRS.~~

~~3. A permit is valid for 10 years after the date of issuance.~~

~~4. The Department may:~~

~~(a) At any time review its determination of whether a holder of a permit is eligible for issuance of the permit pursuant to the provisions of this section. If the Department determines that a holder of a permit is not eligible for issuance of the permit, the Department shall notify the person of that fact in writing. Upon receipt of the notice, the holder shall, as soon as practicable, surrender the permit to the Department.~~

~~(b) Charge a fee for the issuance of a permit pursuant to the provisions of this section.~~

~~[(c) Adopt regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of NRS 426.401 to 426.461, inclusive.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

~~Sec. 6. [NRS 426.461 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~426.461 1. It is unlawful for a person, other than a person to whom [an]~~

~~(a) An expedited service permit is issued, [pursuant to the provisions of NRS 426.441,] to use or attempt to use such a permit to obtain services from a state agency pursuant to the provisions of NRS 426.451.~~

~~(b) A designation that the person is a person with a disability has been placed on the driver's license or instruction permit of the person, to use such designation to prove or otherwise demonstrate to an officer or employee of this State, an agency of this State or a political subdivision of this State that he or she is a person with a disability.~~

~~(c) A designation that the person is a person who is blind or a person with a disability has been placed on the identification card of the person, to use such designation to prove or otherwise demonstrate to an officer or employee of this State, an agency of this State or a political subdivision of this State that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability.~~

~~2. A person who violates a provision of [this] subsection 1 is guilty of a misdemeanor.~~ **(Deleted by amendment.)**

Sec. 7. NRS 293.296 is hereby amended to read as follows:

293.296 1. Any registered voter who by reason of a physical disability or an inability to read or write English is unable to mark a ballot or use any voting device without assistance is entitled to assistance from a consenting person of his or her own choice, except:

- (a) The voter's employer or an agent of the voter's employer; or
- (b) An officer or agent of the voter's labor organization.

2. A person providing assistance pursuant to this section to a voter in casting a vote shall not disclose any information with respect to the casting of that ballot.

3. The right to assistance in casting a ballot may not be denied or impaired when the need for assistance is apparent or is known to the election board or any member thereof ~~[-, but the] or when the registered voter [presents a valid driver's license, instruction permit or identification card issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles with a designation that the registered voter is disabled in a manner necessitating assistance in casting a ballot as described in section 16 or 22 of this act. The election board may require a registered voter to sign a statement that he or she requires assistance in casting a vote by reason of a physical disability or an inability to read or write English when the need for assistance is not apparent or no member of the election board has knowledge thereof. The statement must be executed under penalty of perjury.]~~ **requests such assistance in any manner.**

4. In addition to complying with the requirements of this section, the county clerk and election board officer shall, upon the request of a registered voter with a physical disability, make reasonable accommodations to allow the voter to vote at his or her polling place.

Sec. 8. NRS 293.3165 is hereby amended to read as follows:

293.3165 1. A registered voter who, because of a physical disability, is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance may submit a written statement to the appropriate county clerk requesting that the registered voter receive an absent ballot for each election conducted during the period specified in subsection 3.

2. A written statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 must:

- (a) ~~Include a:~~

~~(1) A statement from a physician licensed in this State certifying that the registered voter is a person with a physical disability and, because of the physical disability, is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance; or~~

~~(2) A copy of the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of the registered voter issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles with a designation that the registered voter is disabled in a manner necessitating assistance in casting a ballot as described in section 16 or 22 of this act;~~

~~(b)~~ Designate the person who will assist the registered voter in marking and signing the absent ballot on behalf of the registered voter; and

~~(c)~~ **(b)** Include the name, address and signature of the person designated pursuant to paragraph ~~(b)~~ **(a)**.

3. Upon receipt of a written statement submitted by a registered voter pursuant to subsection 1, the county clerk shall, if the statement includes the information required pursuant to subsection 2, issue an absent ballot to the registered voter for each election that is conducted during the year immediately succeeding the date the written statement is submitted to the county clerk.

4. ~~[To determine whether a registered voter is entitled to receive an absent ballot pursuant to this section, the county clerk may, every year after an absent~~

1 ~~ballot is issued to a registered voter pursuant to subsection 2, require the registered~~
2 ~~voter to submit a statement from a licensed physician or a copy of a driver's~~
3 ~~license, instruction permit or identification card as specified in paragraph (a) of~~
4 ~~subsection 2. If a statement from a physician licensed in this State submitted~~
5 ~~pursuant to this subsection indicates that the registered voter is no longer physically~~
6 ~~disabled, or the designation on the driver's license, instruction permit or~~
7 ~~identification card of the registered voter is no longer valid, the county clerk shall~~
8 ~~not issue an absent ballot to the registered voter pursuant to this section.~~

9 ~~—5—~~ A person designated pursuant to paragraph ~~(b)~~ (a) of subsection 2 may,
10 on behalf of and at the direction of the registered voter, mark and sign an absent
11 ballot issued to the registered voter pursuant to the provisions of this section. If the
12 person marks and signs the ballot, the person shall indicate next to his or her
13 signature that the ballot has been marked and signed on behalf of the registered
14 voter.

15 ~~(6)~~ 5. The procedure authorized pursuant to this section is subject to all other
16 provisions of this chapter relating to voting by absent ballot to the extent that those
17 provisions are not inconsistent with the provisions of this section.

18 **Sec. 9.** NRS 293C.282 is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 293C.282 1. Any registered voter who, because of a physical disability or
20 an inability to read or write English, is unable to mark a ballot or use any voting
21 device without assistance is entitled to assistance from a consenting person of his or
22 her own choice, except:

- 23 (a) The voter's employer or an agent of the voter's employer; or
24 (b) An officer or agent of the voter's labor organization.

25 2. A person providing assistance pursuant to this section to a voter in casting
26 a vote shall not disclose any information with respect to the casting of that ballot.

27 3. The right to assistance in casting a ballot may not be denied or impaired
28 when the need for assistance is apparent or is known to the election board or any
29 member thereof ~~;~~ or when the registered voter presents a valid driver's
30 ~~license, instruction permit or identification card issued by the Department of~~
31 ~~Motor Vehicles with a designation that the registered voter is disabled in a~~
32 ~~manner necessitating assistance in casting a ballot as described in section 16 or~~
33 ~~22 of this act. The election board may require a registered voter to sign a statement~~
34 ~~that he or she requires assistance in casting a vote because of a physical disability~~
35 ~~or an inability to read or write English when the need for assistance is not apparent~~
36 ~~or no member of the election board has knowledge thereof. The statement must be~~
37 ~~executed under penalty of perjury.~~ requests such assistance in any manner.

38 4. In addition to complying with the requirements of this section, the city
39 clerk and election board officer shall, upon the request of a registered voter with a
40 physical disability, make reasonable accommodations to allow the voter to vote at
41 his or her polling place.

42 **Sec. 10.** NRS 293C.318 is hereby amended to read as follows:

43 293C.318 1. A registered voter who, because of a physical disability, is
44 unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance may
45 submit a written statement to the appropriate city clerk requesting that the
46 registered voter receive an absent ballot for each city election conducted during the
47 period specified in subsection 3.

48 2. A written statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 must:

- 49 (a) ~~Include a~~

50 ~~(1) A statement from a physician licensed in this State certifying that the~~
51 ~~registered voter is a person with a physical disability and, because of the physical~~
52 ~~disability, is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without~~
53 ~~assistance; or~~

~~(2) A copy of the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of the registered voter issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles with a designation that the registered voter is disabled in a manner necessitating assistance in casting a ballot as described in section 16 or 22 of this act;~~

~~(b)~~ Designate the person who will assist the registered voter in marking and signing the absent ballot on behalf of the registered voter; and

~~(c)~~ (b) Include the name, address and signature of the person designated pursuant to paragraph ~~(b)~~ (a).

3. Upon receipt of a written statement submitted by a registered voter pursuant to subsection 1, the city clerk shall, if the statement includes the information required pursuant to subsection 2, issue an absent ballot to the registered voter for each city election that is conducted during the year immediately succeeding the date the written statement is submitted to the city clerk.

~~4. [To determine whether a registered voter is entitled to receive an absent ballot pursuant to this section, the city clerk may, every year after an absent ballot is issued to a registered voter pursuant to subsection 3, require the registered voter to submit a statement from a licensed physician or a copy of a driver's license, instruction permit or identification card as specified in paragraph (a) of subsection 2. If a statement from a physician licensed in this State submitted pursuant to this subsection indicates that the registered voter is no longer physically disabled, or the designation of the driver's license, instruction permit or identification card of the registered voter is no longer valid, the city clerk shall not issue an absent ballot to the registered voter pursuant to this section.]~~

~~5.~~ A person designated pursuant to paragraph ~~(b)~~ (a) of subsection 2 may, on behalf of and at the direction of the registered voter, mark and sign an absent ballot issued to the registered voter pursuant to the provisions of this section. If the person marks and signs the ballot, the person shall indicate next to his or her signature that the ballot has been marked and signed on behalf of the registered voter.

~~6.~~ 5. The procedure authorized pursuant to this section is subject to all other provisions of this chapter relating to voting by absent ballot to the extent that those provisions are not inconsistent with the provisions of this section.

Sec. 11. ~~[NRS 481.023 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~481.023 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section and in the provisions of law described in this section, the Department shall execute, administer and enforce, and perform the functions and duties provided in:~~

~~(a) Chapter 108 of NRS, and perform such duties and exercise such powers relating to liens on vehicles as may be conferred upon it pursuant to chapter 108 of NRS or the provisions of any other law;~~

~~(b) Chapters 360A, 365, 366, 371 and 373 of NRS, relating to the imposition and collection of taxes on motor fuels;~~

~~(c) Chapters 481, 482 to 486, inclusive, and 487 of NRS, relating to motor vehicles. The Department shall not execute, administer or enforce, or perform the functions or duties provided in NRS 486.263 to 486.277, inclusive, relating to the education and safety of motorcycle riders;~~

~~(d) Chapter 706 of NRS relating to licensing of motor vehicle carriers and the use of public highways by those carriers;~~

~~(e) The provisions of NRS 426.401 to 426.461, inclusive [], and sections 2 and 3 of this act;~~

~~2. The Department shall perform such other duties and exercise such other powers as may be conferred upon the Department.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

1 Sec. 12. ~~[Chapter 482 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the~~
2 ~~provisions set forth as sections 13 to 22, inclusive, of this act.]~~ (Deleted by
3 amendment.)

4 Sec. 13. ~~["Disability" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 426.068.]~~
5 (Deleted by amendment.)

6 Sec. 14. ~~1. When a person applies to the Department for an instruction~~
7 ~~permit or driver's license pursuant to NRS 482.200 or 482.201, the Department~~
8 ~~shall inquire whether the person desires to declare that he or she is a person with~~
9 ~~a disability.~~

10 ~~2. If the person declares pursuant to subsection 1 that he or she is a person~~
11 ~~with a disability, the person shall provide a statement from a licensed physician~~
12 ~~certifying that the applicant is a person with a disability.]~~ (Deleted by
13 amendment.)

14 Sec. 15. ~~1. When a person applies to the Department for an instruction~~
15 ~~permit or driver's license pursuant to NRS 482.200, the Department shall inquire~~
16 ~~whether the person desires to declare that he or she is a person with a disability~~
17 ~~and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance.~~

18 ~~2. If the person declares pursuant to subsection 1 that he or she is a person~~
19 ~~with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device~~
20 ~~without assistance, the person shall provide a statement from a licensed physician~~
21 ~~certifying that the applicant is a person with such a disability.]~~ (Deleted by
22 amendment.)

23 Sec. 16. ~~1. Upon the application of a person who requests that his or her~~
24 ~~instruction permit or driver's license indicate that he or she is a person with a~~
25 ~~disability pursuant to section 14 of this act, and who satisfies the requirements of~~
26 ~~that section, the Department shall place on any instruction permit or driver's~~
27 ~~license issued to the person pursuant to the provisions of this chapter a~~
28 ~~designation that the person is a person with a disability.~~

29 ~~2. Upon the application of a person who requests that his or her instruction~~
30 ~~permit or driver's license indicate that he or she is a person with a disability and~~
31 ~~is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance~~
32 ~~pursuant to section 15 of this act, and who satisfies the requirements of that~~
33 ~~section, the Department shall place on any instruction permit or driver's license~~
34 ~~issued to the person pursuant to the provisions of this chapter a designation that~~
35 ~~the person is a person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or~~
36 ~~use a voting device without assistance.~~

37 ~~3. The Director shall determine the design and placement of the~~
38 ~~designations required by subsections 1 and 2 on any instruction permit or driver's~~
39 ~~license to which this section applies.~~

40 ~~4. The Department, in consultation with the Secretary of State and the~~
41 ~~Nevada Commission on Services for Persons with Disabilities, shall adopt~~
42 ~~regulations governing the eligibility of a person for the designations described in~~
43 ~~subsection 1 and 2.]~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

44 Sec. 17. ~~[As used in NRS 482.810 to 482.890, inclusive, and sections 17 to~~
45 ~~22, inclusive, of this act, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and~~
46 ~~terms defined in sections 18 and 19 of this act have the meanings ascribed to~~
47 ~~them in those sections.]~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

48 Sec. 18. ~~["Disability" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 426.068.]~~
49 (Deleted by amendment.)

50 Sec. 19. ~~["Person who is blind" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS~~
51 ~~426.082.]~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

52 Sec. 20. ~~1. When a person applies to the Department for an~~
53 ~~identification card pursuant to NRS 482.850, the Department shall inquire~~

~~whether the person desires to declare that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability.~~

~~2. If the person declares pursuant to subsection 1 that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, the person shall provide a statement from a licensed physician certifying that the applicant is a person who is blind or a person with a disability.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

~~Sec. 21. 1. When a person applies to the Department for an identification card pursuant to NRS 483.850, the Department shall inquire whether the person desires to declare that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance.~~

~~2. If the person declares pursuant to subsection 1 that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance, the person shall provide a statement from a licensed physician certifying that the applicant is a person who is blind or a person with such a disability.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

~~Sec. 22. 1. Upon the application of a person who requests that his or her identification card indicate that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability pursuant to section 20 of this act, and who satisfies the requirements of that section, the Department shall place on the identification card issued to the person pursuant to the provisions of this chapter a designation that the person is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, as applicable.~~

~~2. Upon the application of a person who requests that his or her identification card indicate that he or she is a person who is blind or a person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance pursuant to section 21 of this act, and who satisfies the requirements of that section, the Department shall place on the identification card issued to the person pursuant to the provisions of this chapter a designation that the person is a person who is blind or a person with a disability, as applicable, and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance.~~

~~3. The Director shall determine the design and placement of the designations required by subsections 1 and 2 on any identification card to which this section applies.~~

~~4. The Department, in consultation with the Secretary of State, the Nevada Commission on Services for Persons with Disabilities and the Bureau of Services to Persons Who Are Blind or Visually Impaired, shall adopt regulations governing the eligibility of a person for the designations described in subsections 1 and 2.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

~~Sec. 23. [NRS 483.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:
483.010 The provisions of NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act may be cited as the Uniform Motor Vehicle Drivers' License Act.]~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

~~Sec. 24. [NRS 483.015 is hereby amended to read as follows:
483.015 Except as otherwise provided in NRS 483.230, the provisions of NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act apply only with respect to noncommercial drivers' licenses.]~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

~~Sec. 25. [NRS 483.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:
483.020 As used in NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms~~

defined in NRS 482.020 to 482.190, inclusive, ~~and section 13 of this act have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 26. [NRS 482.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

~~482.220 1. Except persons expressly exempted in NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act, a person shall not drive any motor vehicle upon a highway in this State unless such person has a valid license as a driver under the provisions of NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act for the type or class of vehicle being driven.~~

~~2. Any person licensed as a driver under the provisions of NRS 482.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act may exercise the privilege thereby granted upon all streets and highways of this State and shall not be required to obtain any other license to exercise such privilege by any county, municipal or local board or body having authority to adopt local police regulations.~~

~~3. Except persons expressly exempted in NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act, a person shall not steer or exercise any degree of physical control of a vehicle being towed by a motor vehicle upon a highway unless such person has a license to drive the type or class of vehicle being towed.~~

~~4. A person shall not receive a driver's license until the person surrenders to the Department all valid licenses in his or her possession issued to the person by this or any other jurisdiction. Surrendered licenses issued by another jurisdiction shall be returned by the Department to such jurisdiction. A person shall not have more than one valid driver's license.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 27. [NRS 482.240 is hereby amended to read as follows:

~~482.240 The following persons are exempt from license under the provisions of NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive [-], and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act:~~

~~1. Any person while driving a motor vehicle in the service of the Armed Forces;~~

~~2. Any person while driving any road machine, farm tractor or implement of husbandry temporarily operated or moved on a highway;~~

~~3. A nonresident who is at least 16 years of age and who has in his or her immediate possession a valid license issued to the person in his or her home state or country may drive a motor vehicle in this State of the type or class the person may operate in that home state or country;~~

~~4. Any nonresident who is at least 18 years of age, whose home state or country does not require the licensing of drivers, may drive a motor vehicle for a period of not more than 90 days in any calendar year, if the motor vehicle driven is duly registered in the home state or country of such nonresident;~~

~~5. A nonresident on active duty in the Armed Forces who has a valid license issued by the person's home state and such nonresident's spouse or dependent child who has a valid license issued by such state;~~

~~6. Any person on active duty in the Armed Forces who has a valid license issued in a foreign country by the Armed Forces may drive a motor vehicle for a period of not more than 45 days from the date of his or her return to the United States.~~ (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 28. [NRS 482.250 is hereby amended to read as follows:

~~482.250 The Department shall not issue any license pursuant to the provisions of NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive [-], and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act:~~

~~1. To any person who is under the age of 18 years, except that the Department may issue:~~

~~(a) A restricted license to a person between the ages of 14 and 18 years pursuant to the provisions of NRS 483.267 and 483.270.~~

~~(b) An instruction permit to a person who is at least 15 1/2 years of age pursuant to the provisions of subsection 1 of NRS 483.280.~~

~~(c) A restricted instruction permit to a person under the age of 18 years pursuant to the provisions of subsection 3 of NRS 483.280.~~

~~(d) A driver's license to a person who is 16 or 17 years of age pursuant to NRS 483.2521.~~

~~2. To any person whose license has been revoked until the expiration of the period during which the person is not eligible for a license.~~

~~3. To any person whose license has been suspended, but upon good cause shown to the Administrator, the Department may issue a restricted license to the person or shorten any period of suspension.~~

~~4. To any person who has previously been adjudged to be afflicted with or suffering from any mental disability or disease and who has not at the time of application been restored to legal capacity.~~

~~5. To any person who is required by NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act to take an examination, unless the person has successfully passed the examination.~~

~~6. To any person when the Administrator has good cause to believe that by reason of physical or mental disability that person would not be able to operate a motor vehicle safely.~~

~~7. To any person who is not a resident of this State.~~

~~8. To any child who is the subject of a court order issued pursuant to title 5 of NRS or administrative sanctions imposed pursuant to NRS 392.148 which delay the child's privilege to drive.~~

~~9. To any person who is the subject of a court order issued pursuant to NRS 206.330 which delays the person's privilege to drive until the expiration of the period of delay.~~

~~10. To any person who is not eligible for the issuance of a license pursuant to NRS 483.283.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 29. ~~[NRS 483.340 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~483.340 1. The Department shall, upon payment of the required fee, issue to every qualified applicant a driver's license indicating the type or class of vehicles the licensee may drive.~~

~~2. The Department shall adopt regulations prescribing the information that must be contained on a driver's license.~~

~~3. The Department may issue a driver's license for purposes of identification only for use by officers of local police and sheriffs' departments, agents of the Investigation Division of the Department of Public Safety while engaged in special undercover investigations relating to narcotics or prostitution or for other undercover investigations requiring the establishment of a fictitious identity, federal agents while engaged in undercover investigations, investigators employed by the Attorney General while engaged in undercover investigations, criminal investigators employed by the Secretary of State while engaged in undercover investigations and agents of the State Gaming Control Board while engaged in investigations pursuant to NRS 463.140. An application for such a license must be made through the head of the police or sheriff's department, the Chief of the Investigation Division of the Department of Public Safety, the director of the appropriate federal agency, the Attorney General, the Secretary of State or his or her designee or the Chair of the State Gaming Control Board. Such a license is exempt from the fees required by NRS 483.410. The Department, by regulation,~~

shall provide for the cancellation of any such driver's license upon the completion of the special investigation for which it was issued.

4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 229.0115, information pertaining to the issuance of a driver's license pursuant to subsection 3 is confidential.

5. It is unlawful for any person to use a driver's license issued pursuant to subsection 3 for any purpose other than the special investigation for which it was issued.

6. At the time of the issuance or renewal of the driver's license, the Department shall:

(a) Give the holder the opportunity to have indicated on his or her driver's license that the holder wishes to be a donor of all or part of his or her body pursuant to NRS 451.500 to 451.598, inclusive, or to refuse to make an anatomical gift of his or her body or part thereof;

(b) Give the holder the opportunity to have indicated whether he or she wishes to donate \$1 or more to the Anatomical Gift Account created by NRS 460.150;

(c) Provide to each holder who is interested in becoming a donor information relating to anatomical gifts, including the procedure for registering as a donor with the donor registry with which the Department has entered into a contract pursuant to this paragraph. To carry out this paragraph, the Department shall, on such terms as it deems appropriate, enter into a contract with a donor registry that is in compliance with the provisions of NRS 451.500 to 451.598, inclusive;

(d) If the Department has established a program for imprinting a symbol or other indicator of a medical condition on a driver's license pursuant to NRS 483.3485, give the holder the opportunity to have a symbol or other indicator of a medical condition imprinted on his or her driver's license.

(e) Give the holder the opportunity, pursuant to section 16 of this act, to have indicated on his or her driver's license that the holder is:

(1) A person with a disability; or

(2) A person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance.

7. If the holder wishes to make a donation to the Anatomical Gift Account, the Department shall collect the donation and deposit the money collected in the State Treasury for credit to the Anatomical Gift Account.

8. The Department shall submit to the donor registry with which the Department has entered into a contract pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 6 information from the records of the Department relating to persons who have drivers' licenses that indicate the intention of those persons to make an anatomical gift. The Department shall adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of this subsection. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 30. [NRS 483.270 is hereby amended to read as follows:

483.270 If an instruction permit or driver's license issued under the provisions of NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act is lost or destroyed, the person to whom the permit or license was issued may obtain a duplicate, or substitute thereof, upon:

1. Furnishing proof satisfactory to the Department that:

(a) The permit or license was lost or destroyed; and

(b) He or she is the person to whom that permit or license was issued.

2. Payment of the required fee. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 31. [NRS 483.420 is hereby amended to read as follows:

483.420 1. The Department is hereby authorized to cancel any driver's license upon determining that the licensee was not entitled to the issuance thereof pursuant to NRS 483.010 to 483.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of

~~this act~~ or that the licensee failed to give the required or correct information in his or her application or committed any fraud in making an application.

~~2. Upon cancellation of a driver's license pursuant to subsection 1, the licensee shall surrender the license cancelled to the Department.~~

~~3. The Department is authorized to cancel any license that is voluntarily surrendered to the Department.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 32. ~~NRS 482.430 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~482.430 1. The privilege of driving a motor vehicle on the highways of this State given to a nonresident under NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act shall be subject to suspension or revocation by the Department in like manner and for like cause as a driver's license issued under NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act may be suspended or revoked.~~

~~2. The Department is further authorized, upon receiving a record of the conviction in this State of a nonresident driver of a motor vehicle of any offense under the motor vehicle laws of this State, to forward a certified copy of such record to the motor vehicle administrator in the state wherein the person so convicted is a resident.~~

~~3. When a nonresident's driving privilege is suspended or revoked in this State, the Department shall forward a copy of the record of such action to the motor vehicle administrator in the state where such driver resides.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 33. ~~NRS 482.450 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~482.450 1. A record of conviction must be made in a manner approved by the Department. The court shall provide sufficient information to allow the Department to include accurately the information regarding the conviction in the driver's record.~~

~~2. The Department shall adopt regulations prescribing the information necessary to record the conviction in the driver's record.~~

~~3. Every court, including a juvenile court, having jurisdiction over violations of the provisions of NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or any other law of this State or municipal ordinance regulating the operation of motor vehicles on highways, shall forward to the Department:~~

~~(a) If the court is other than a juvenile court, a record of the conviction of any person in that court for a violation of any such laws other than regulations governing standing or parking; or~~

~~(b) If the court is a juvenile court, a record of any finding that a child has violated a traffic law or ordinance other than one governing standing or parking;~~

~~within 5 days after the conviction or finding, and may recommend the suspension of the driver's license of the person convicted or child found in violation of a traffic law or ordinance.~~

~~4. If a record forwarded to the Department pursuant to subsection 3 is a record of the conviction of a person who holds a commercial driver's license, the Department shall, within 5 days after the date on which it receives such a record, transmit notice of the conviction to the Commercial Driver's License Information System.~~

~~5. For the purposes of NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive [1], and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act:~~

~~(a) "Conviction" has the meaning prescribed by regulation pursuant to NRS 481.052.~~

~~(b) A forfeiture of bail or collateral deposited to secure a defendant's appearance in court, if the forfeiture has not been vacated, is equivalent to a conviction.~~

~~6. The necessary expenses of mailing records of conviction to the Department as required by this section must be paid by the court charged with the duty of forwarding those records of conviction.~~

~~7. As used in this section, "Commercial Driver's License Information System" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 483.904.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 34. ~~NRS 483.460 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

~~483.460 1. Except as otherwise provided by specific statute, the Department shall revoke the license, permit or privilege of any driver upon receiving a record of his or her conviction of any of the following offenses, when that conviction has become final, and the driver is not eligible for a license, permit or privilege to drive for the period indicated:~~

~~(a) For a period of 3 years if the offense is:~~

~~(1) A violation of subsection 6 of NRS 484B.652.~~

~~(2) A third or subsequent violation within 7 years of NRS 484C.110 or 484C.120.~~

~~(3) A violation of NRS 484C.110 or 484C.120 resulting in a felony conviction pursuant to NRS 484C.400 or 484C.410.~~

~~(4) A violation of NRS 484C.430 or a homicide resulting from driving or being in actual physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance or resulting from any other conduct prohibited by NRS 484C.110, 484C.120 or 484C.430.~~

~~→ The period during which such a driver is not eligible for a license, permit or privilege to drive must be set aside during any period of imprisonment and the period of revocation must resume when the Department is notified pursuant to NRS 209.517 or 213.12185 that the person has completed the period of imprisonment or that the person has been placed on residential confinement or parole.~~

~~(b) For a period of 1 year if the offense is:~~

~~(1) Any other manslaughter, including vehicular manslaughter as described in NRS 484B.657, resulting from the driving of a motor vehicle or felony in the commission of which a motor vehicle is used, including the unlawful taking of a motor vehicle.~~

~~(2) Failure to stop and render aid as required pursuant to the laws of this State in the event of a motor vehicle accident resulting in the death or bodily injury of another.~~

~~(3) Perjury or the making of a false affidavit or statement under oath to the Department pursuant to NRS 483.010 to 483.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or pursuant to any other law relating to the ownership or driving of motor vehicles.~~

~~(4) Conviction, or forfeiture of bail not vacated, upon three charges of reckless driving committed within a period of 12 months.~~

~~(5) A second violation within 7 years of NRS 484C.110 or 484C.120 and the driver is not eligible for a restricted license during any of that period.~~

~~(6) A violation of NRS 484B.550.~~

~~(c) For a period of 90 days, if the offense is a first violation within 7 years of NRS 484C.110 or 484C.120.~~

~~2. The Department shall revoke the license, permit or privilege of a driver convicted of violating NRS 484C.110 or 484C.120 who fails to complete the educational course on the use of alcohol and controlled substances within the time~~

ordered by the court and shall add a period of 90 days during which the driver is not eligible for a license, permit or privilege to drive.

2. When the Department is notified by a court that a person who has been convicted of a first violation within 7 years of NRS 484C.110 has been permitted to enter a program of treatment pursuant to NRS 484C.320, the Department shall reduce by one half the period during which the person is not eligible for a license, permit or privilege to drive, but shall restore that reduction in time if notified that the person was not accepted for or failed to complete the treatment.

4. The Department shall revoke the license, permit or privilege to drive of a person who is required to install a device pursuant to NRS 484C.460 but who operates a motor vehicle without such a device.

(a) For 3 years, if it is his or her first such offense during the period of required use of the device.

(b) For 5 years, if it is his or her second such offense during the period of required use of the device.

5. A driver whose license, permit or privilege is revoked pursuant to subsection 4 is not eligible for a restricted license during the period set forth in paragraph (a) or (b) of that subsection, whichever applies.

6. In addition to any other requirements set forth by specific statute, if the Department is notified that a court has ordered the revocation, suspension or delay in the issuance of a license pursuant to title 5 of NRS, NRS 176.064, 206.320 or 392.148, chapters 484A to 484E, inclusive, of NRS or any other provision of law, the Department shall take such actions as are necessary to carry out the court's order.

7. As used in this section, "device" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 484C.450. **(Deleted by amendment.)**

Sec. 35. ~~NRS 482.510 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

482.510 Any resident or nonresident whose driver's license or right or privilege to drive a motor vehicle in this State has been suspended or revoked, as provided in NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, **and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act** shall not drive a motor vehicle in this State under a license, permit or registration certificate issued by any other jurisdiction, or otherwise, during such suspension or after such revocation until a license is obtained when and as permitted under NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive [;], **and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act.** **(Deleted by amendment.)**

Sec. 36. ~~NRS 482.520 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

482.520 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, it is a misdemeanor for any person:

(a) To display or cause or permit to be displayed or possess any cancelled, revoked, suspended, fictitious, fraudulently altered or fraudulently obtained driver's license;

(b) To alter, forge, substitute, counterfeit or use an unvalidated driver's license;

(c) To lend his or her driver's license to any other person or knowingly permit the use thereof by another;

(d) To display or represent as one's own any driver's license not issued to him or her;

(e) To fail or refuse to surrender to the Department, a peace officer or a court upon lawful demand any driver's license which has been suspended, revoked or cancelled;

(f) To permit any unlawful use of a driver's license issued to him or her;

(g) To do any act forbidden, or fail to perform any act required, by NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive [;], **and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act, or**

1 ~~— (h) To photograph, photostat, duplicate or in any way reproduce any driver's~~
2 ~~license or facsimile thereof in such a manner that it could be mistaken for a valid~~
3 ~~license, or to display or possess any such photograph, photostat, duplicate,~~
4 ~~reproduction or facsimile unless authorized by this chapter.~~

5 ~~2. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a person who uses a false~~
6 ~~or fictitious name in any application for a driver's license or identification card or~~
7 ~~who knowingly makes a false statement or knowingly conceals a material fact or~~
8 ~~otherwise commits a fraud in any such application is guilty of a category E felony~~
9 ~~and shall be punished as provided in NRS 192.120. If the false statement, knowing~~
10 ~~concealment of a material fact or other commission of fraud described in this~~
11 ~~subsection relates solely to the age of a person, including, without limitation, to~~
12 ~~establish false proof of age to game, purchase alcoholic beverages or purchase~~
13 ~~cigarettes or other tobacco products, the person is guilty of a misdemeanor.]~~

14 ~~(Deleted by amendment.)~~

15 **Sec. 37.** ~~[NRS 482.570 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

16 ~~482.570 No person whose driving privilege as a nonresident has been~~
17 ~~cancelled, suspended or revoked, as provided in NRS 482.010 to 482.630,~~
18 ~~inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act shall drive any motor vehicle~~
19 ~~upon the highways of this State while such privilege is cancelled, suspended or~~
20 ~~revoked.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

21 **Sec. 38.** ~~[NRS 482.580 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

22 ~~482.580 A person shall not cause or knowingly permit his or her child or~~
23 ~~ward under the age of 18 years to drive a motor vehicle upon any highway when the~~
24 ~~minor is not authorized under the provisions of NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive,~~
25 ~~and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or is in violation of any of the~~
26 ~~provisions of NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive,~~
27 ~~of this act or if the minor's license is revoked or suspended pursuant to title 5 of~~
28 ~~NRS or NRS 392.148.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

29 **Sec. 39.** ~~[NRS 482.590 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

30 ~~482.590 No person shall authorize or knowingly permit a motor vehicle~~
31 ~~owned by the person or under his or her control to be driven upon any highway by~~
32 ~~any person who is not authorized under NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive, and~~
33 ~~sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or in violation of any of the provisions of~~
34 ~~NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive [], and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this~~
35 ~~act.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

36 **Sec. 40.** ~~[NRS 482.600 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

37 ~~482.600 No person shall employ as a driver of a motor vehicle any person not~~
38 ~~then licensed as provided in NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive [], and sections~~
39 ~~13 to 16, inclusive, of this act.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

40 **Sec. 41.** ~~[NRS 482.610 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

41 ~~482.610 1. No person shall rent a motor vehicle to any other person unless~~
42 ~~the latter person is then duly licensed under NRS 482.010 to 482.630, inclusive,~~
43 ~~and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or, in the case of a nonresident, then~~
44 ~~duly licensed under the laws of the state or country of his or her residence except a~~
45 ~~nonresident whose home state or country does not require that a driver be licensed:~~

46 ~~2. No person shall rent a motor vehicle to another until the person has~~
47 ~~inspected the driver's license of the person to whom the vehicle is to be rented and~~
48 ~~compared and verified the signature thereon with the signature of such person~~
49 ~~written in his or her presence:~~

50 ~~3. Every person renting a motor vehicle to another shall keep a record of the~~
51 ~~registration number of the motor vehicle so rented, the name and address of the~~
52 ~~person to whom the vehicle is rented, the number of the license of the latter person~~
53 ~~and the date and place when and where the license was issued. Such record shall be~~

~~open to inspection by any police officer or officer of the Department.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 42. ~~[NRS 482.620 is hereby amended to read as follows:
482.620 It is a misdemeanor for any person to violate any of the provisions of NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act, unless such violation is, by NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act or other law of this State, declared to be a felony.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 43. ~~[NRS 482.620 is hereby amended to read as follows:
482.620 NRS 482.010 to 482.620, inclusive, and sections 13 to 16, inclusive, of this act shall be so interpreted and construed as to effectuate their general purpose to make uniform the law of those states which enact them.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 44. ~~[NRS 482.820 is hereby amended to read as follows:
482.820 1. A person who applies for an identification card in accordance with the provisions of NRS 482.810 to 482.890, inclusive, and sections 17 to 22, inclusive, of this act and who is not ineligible to receive an identification card pursuant to NRS 482.861, is entitled to receive an identification card if the person is:
(a) A resident of this State and is 10 years of age or older and does not hold a valid driver's license or identification card from any state or jurisdiction; or
(b) A seasonal resident who does not hold a valid Nevada driver's license.
2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.825, the Department shall charge and collect the following fees for the issuance of an original, duplicate or changed identification card:~~

An original or duplicate identification card issued to a person 65 years of age or older	\$4
An original or duplicate identification card issued to a person under 18 years of age which expires on the eighth anniversary of the person's birthday	6
A renewal of an identification card for a person under 18 years of age which expires on the eighth anniversary of the person's birthday	6
An original or duplicate identification card issued to a person under 18 years of age which expires on or before the fourth anniversary of the person's birthday	3
A renewal of an identification card for a person under 18 years of age which expires on or before the fourth anniversary of the person's birthday	3
An original or duplicate identification card issued to any person at least 18 years of age, but less than 65 years of age, which expires on the eighth anniversary of the person's birthday	18
A renewal of an identification card for any person at least 18 years of age, but less than 65 years of age, which expires on the eighth anniversary of the person's birthday	18
An original or duplicate identification card issued to any person at least 18 years of age, but less than 65 years of age, which expires on or before the fourth anniversary of the person's birthday	9

~~A renewal of an identification card for any person at least 18 years of age, but less than 65 years of age, which expires on or before the fourth anniversary of the person's birthday.....9~~
~~A new photograph or change of name, or both.....4~~

~~2. The Department shall not charge a fee for:~~
~~(a) An identification card issued to a person who has voluntarily surrendered his or her driver's license pursuant to NRS 482.420; or~~
~~(b) A renewal of an identification card for a person 65 years of age or older.~~
~~4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.825, the increase in fees authorized in NRS 483.347 must be paid in addition to the fees charged pursuant to this section.~~
~~5. As used in this section, "photograph" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 482.125.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

Sec. 45. ~~NRS 482.840 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~
~~482.840 1. The form of the identification cards must be similar to that of drivers' licenses but distinguishable in color or otherwise.~~
~~2. Identification cards do not authorize the operation of any motor vehicles.~~
~~3. The Department shall adopt regulations prescribing the information that must be contained on an identification card.~~
~~4. At the time of the issuance or renewal of the identification card, the Department shall:~~
~~(a) Give the holder the opportunity to have indicated on his or her identification card that the holder wishes to be a donor of all or part of his or her body pursuant to NRS 451.500 to 451.598, inclusive, or to refuse to make an anatomical gift of his or her body or part thereof;~~
~~(b) Give the holder the opportunity to indicate whether he or she wishes to donate \$1 or more to the Anatomical Gift Account created by NRS 460.150;~~
~~(c) Provide to each holder who is interested in becoming a donor information relating to anatomical gifts, including the procedure for registering as a donor with the donor registry with which the Department has entered into a contract pursuant to this paragraph. To carry out this paragraph, the Department shall, on such terms as it deems appropriate, enter into a contract with a donor registry that is in compliance with the provisions of NRS 451.500 to 451.598, inclusive;~~
~~(d) If the Department has established a program for imprinting a symbol or other indicator of a medical condition on an identification card pursuant to NRS 482.863, give the holder the opportunity to have a symbol or other indicator of a medical condition imprinted on his or her identification card;~~
~~(e) Give the holder the opportunity, pursuant to section 22 of this act, to have indicated on his or her identification card that the holder is:~~
~~(1) A person who is blind or a person with a disability; or~~
~~(2) A person who is blind or a person with a disability and is unable to mark or sign a ballot or use a voting device without assistance.~~
~~5. If the holder wishes to make a donation to the Anatomical Gift Account, the Department shall collect the donation and deposit the money collected in the State Treasury for credit to the Anatomical Gift Account;~~
~~6. The Department shall submit to the donor registry with which the Department has entered into a contract pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 4 information from the records of the Department relating to persons who have identification cards issued by the Department that indicate the intention of those persons to make an anatomical gift. The Department shall adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of this subsection.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

1 **Sec. 46.** ~~[NRS 483.852 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~
2 ~~483.852 1. Upon the application of a person who requests that his or her~~
3 ~~identification card indicate that he or she is a veteran of the Armed Forces of the~~
4 ~~United States pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 483.852, and who satisfies the~~
5 ~~requirements of that subsection, the Department shall place on any identification~~
6 ~~card issued to the person pursuant to NRS 483.810 to 483.890, inclusive, and~~
7 ~~sections 17 to 22, inclusive, of this act a designation that the person is a veteran.~~
8 ~~2. The Director shall determine the design and placement of the designation~~
9 ~~of veteran status required by subsection 1 on any identification card to which this~~
10 ~~section applies.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

11 **Sec. 47.** ~~[NRS 482.865 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~
12 ~~482.865 1. Upon the application of a person with a disability which limits~~
13 ~~or impairs the ability to walk, the Department shall place on any identification card~~
14 ~~issued to the person pursuant to NRS 483.810 to 483.890, inclusive, and sections~~
15 ~~17 to 22, inclusive, of this act a designation that the person is a person with a~~
16 ~~disability. The application must include a statement from a licensed physician~~
17 ~~certifying that the applicant is a person with a disability which limits or impairs the~~
18 ~~ability to walk.~~
19 ~~2. For the purposes of this section, "person with a disability which limits or~~
20 ~~impairs the ability to walk" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 482.3835.]~~
21 ~~(Deleted by amendment.)~~

22 **Sec. 48.** ~~[NRS 482.867 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~
23 ~~482.867 Upon the application of a person who is a seasonal resident of this~~
24 ~~State, the Department shall place on any identification card issued to the person~~
25 ~~pursuant to NRS 483.810 to 483.890, inclusive [], and sections 17 to 22,~~
26 ~~inclusive, of this act:~~
27 ~~1. A designation indicating that the person is a seasonal resident; and~~
28 ~~2. A statement indicating that the person holds a valid driver's license from~~
29 ~~another state or jurisdiction.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

30 **Sec. 49.** ~~[NRS 482.875 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~
31 ~~482.875 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.861 and 482.870, an~~
32 ~~identification card and a renewal of an identification card issued pursuant to NRS~~
33 ~~483.810 to 483.890, inclusive, and sections 17 to 22, inclusive, of this act expires~~
34 ~~as prescribed by regulation.~~
35 ~~2. The Department shall adopt regulations prescribing when an identification~~
36 ~~card expires.~~
37 ~~3. An identification card is renewable at any time before its expiration upon~~
38 ~~application and payment of the required fee.~~
39 ~~4. The Department shall issue an identification card that is valid only during~~
40 ~~the time the applicant is authorized to stay in the United States, or if there is no~~
41 ~~definite end to the time the applicant is authorized to stay, the identification card is~~
42 ~~valid for 1 year beginning on the date of issuance.] (Deleted by amendment.)~~

43 **Sec. 50.** ~~This act becomes effective [~~
44 ~~1. Upon] upon passage and approval [for the purposes of adopting~~
45 ~~regulations and performing any other preparatory administrative tasks that are~~
46 ~~necessary to carry out the provisions of this act; and~~
47 ~~2. On January 1, 2016, for all other purposes.]~~